
DRAFT

 

 
Washoe County Community Services Department, Planning and Building Division 

Post Office Box 11130, Reno, NV  89520-0027 – 1001 E. Ninth St., Reno, NV  89512 
Telephone:  775.328.6100 – Fax:  775.328.6133 

www.washoecounty.us/csd/planning_and_development 

 WASHOE COUNTY 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 

Planning Commission Members Tuesday, October 3, 2017 
Sarah Chvilicek, Chair 6:30 p.m. 
Larry Chesney, Vice Chair  
James Barnes  
Thomas B. Bruce  
Francine Donshick  
Philip Horan Washoe County Commission Chambers 
Michael W. Lawson 1001 East Ninth Street 
Carl R. Webb, Jr., AICP, Secretary Reno, NV 
 

The Washoe County Planning Commission met in a scheduled session on Tuesday,  
October 3, 2017, in the Washoe County Commission Chambers, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada. 

 
1. *Determination of Quorum 
Chair Chvilicek called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. The following Commissioners and staff 
were present: 
 
Commissioners present: Sarah Chvilicek, Chair 
 Larry Chesney, Vice Chair 
 James Barnes 
 Thomas B. Bruce 
 Francine Donshick  
 Philip Horan 
 Michael W. Lawson 
 
Staff present: Carl R. Webb, Jr., AICP, Secretary 
 Vahid Behmaram, Water Management Planner Coordinator 
 Kelly Mullin, AICP, Senior Planner, Planning and Building 
 Eric Young, Senior Planner, Planning and Building 
 Roger Pelham, MPA, Senior Planner, Planning and Building 
 Trevor Lloyd, Planning Manager, Planning and Building 
 Julee Olander, Planner, Planning and Building 

Nathan Edwards, Deputy District Attorney, District Attorney’s Office  
Katy Stark, Recording Secretary, Planning and Building 
Kathy Emerson, Administrative Secretary Supervisor, Planning and 
Building 

  
2.  *Pledge of Allegiance  
Commissioner Barnes led the pledge to the flag. 

3. *Ethics Law Announcement 
Deputy District Attorney Edwards provided the ethics procedure for disclosures. 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 2 of 16 

4. *Appeal Procedure 
Secretary Webb recited the appeal procedure for items heard before the Planning Commission.  
 
5. *Public Comment 
Chair Chvilicek opened the public comment period. There was no response to the call for public 
comment.  
 
6. Approval of Agenda 
Chair Chvilicek stated Item 8A would be moved to the November 7, 2017 meeting. She said the 
survey was just launched within the last couple weeks and the Truckee Meadows Regional 
Planning Agency wanted to compile the data before making their presentation to the Planning 
Commission. She also noted there was a request to move Item 9C before Item 9B. In 
accordance with the Open Meeting Law, Commissioner Horan moved to approve the agenda for 
the October 3, 2017 meeting as amended. Vice Chair Chesney seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously.  

7. Approval of September 5, 2017 Draft Minutes 
Commissioner Donshick moved to approve the minutes for the September 5, 2017, Planning 
Commission meeting as written. Vice Chair Chesney seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously.  

8. Planning Items 
 *A. Presentation and possible discussion on the 2017/2018 Truckee Meadows Regional 

Plan update. Presentation will include an overview of the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan, 
the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency, and the update process. 

Item 8A was continued to the November 7, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. 

9. Public Hearings 
 A. Development Code Amendment Case Number WDCA17-0002 (Water Rights) – For 

possible action, hearing, and discussion to amend Washoe County Code Chapter 110 
(Development Code) within Article 422, Water and Sewer Resource Requirements, to 
remove the requirements to dedicate water rights to Washoe County for commercial, 
industrial, or civic uses in areas not served by the Truckee Meadows Water Authority, or a 
General Improvement District; and other matters necessarily connected therewith and 
pertaining thereto; and, if approval of the amendment is recommended, to authorize the 
Chair to sign a resolution to that effect. 

• Prepared by: Vahid Behmaram, Water Management Planner 
Coordinator and Kelly Mullin, AICP, Senior Planner  
Washoe County Community Services Department 
Planning and Building Division 

• Phone: 775.954.4647 (Vahid); 775.328.3608 (Kelly) 
• E-Mail: vbehmaram@washoecounty.us (Vahid) 

 kmullin@washoecounty.us (Kelly) 

Mr. Webb read the item into the record. Chair Chvilicek opened the public hearing and called for 
disclosures. Hearing none, she called for staff presentation. Vahid Behmaram, Water 
Management Planner Coordinator, presented the Staff Report. He discussed water rights, 

mailto:vbehmaram@washoecounty.us
mailto:kmullin@washoecounty.us


DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 3 of 16 

parcel maps, commercial and industrial projects, water purveyors, Article 422, water resources, 
permits and licenses, and Ordinance 586.  
 
Chair Chvilicek opened discussion and questions from the Commission. Commissioner Horan 
said the presentation showed “definition” for the General Improvement District (GID) and he 
wondered what that meant. Mr. Behmaram stated in the 2015 amendments to Article 422 GIDs 
were exempted, but there was no definition and they were required to define everything in the 
Code.   
 
Commissioner Lawson said he had some concerns about giving these water rights back 
retroactively. He thought some danger would exist in that strategy and he was not sure what the 
benefit would be. Mr. Behmaram explained that years ago water rights were very cheap and 
were purchased at the beginning of a project to give to a utility or satisfy some requirements and 
then they were forgotten. He said over the last 10 years, the value of water rights had increased 
significantly. When the County was in the ownership chain of title, the water rights were 
dedicated to the County and the County would make sure the filing fees would be paid to the 
State and the project was in conformance. If the County was not in the chain of title, then the 
risks were the water rights might get cancelled if the owner was not in compliance. He said a 
commercial owner would sell off the water rights and continue with the commercial project. He 
thought the County could now address that through the notification process by the State or the 
ability for the County to review the water rights on their website.  
 
Mr. Webb said what was not mentioned was the tie-in back to the original development. The 
development would still be approved and if those water rights went away, they would be 
violating a condition of the original approval, which could jeopardize their business license or an 
administrative or special use permit.  
 
Commissioner Lawson said he appreciated the explanation of the risk, but he wanted an 
explanation of the benefit. Mr. Behmaram stated, assuming people would remain in 
conformance with all the requirements for their project or special use permit, the County would 
not have to be in the business of managing all the water rights. There was a time when Washoe 
County was a water utility.  The County managed thousands upon thousands of water right 
permits, and that is not the case anymore. He saw this as an evolution and people recognizing 
the importance of water rights. He thought the commercial and industrial business owners had 
to manage a lot of other things and why not their own water rights.  
 
Chair Chvilicek asked where the checks and balances would be. Mr. Behmaram stated the 
checks and balances would be early in the approval process, because they had to have 
adequate water rights. He said if the water rights remained on the well and the place of use 
matched the project, then they would be in conformance.  
 
Commissioner Horan said it sounded like it was a bookkeeping system and he wondered who 
would control that. Mr. Behmaram said the State Engineer’s Office would manage the water 
rights and the County was the link between small projects and the State Engineer’s Office. If 
adequate water rights were in place at the beginning of the project, then the State Engineer 
would know if there were any proposed changes through the notification process, and they 
would notify Washoe County, and they could lose their special use permit or their business 
license.  
 
Mr. Webb said Washoe County would become the auditor and it was the County’s job to monitor 
and ensure that adequate water rights that were supposed to be with a project would be there. 
Commissioner Horan asked if there was adequate staff to do that. Mr. Behmaram stated he was 
it, but there were not a lot of projects that fell into this category. Mr. Webb stated when the 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 4 of 16 

Department of Water Resources went away, there was a decision to keep Mr. Behmaram for 
these types of projects.  
 
Ms. Mullin, Senior Planner, continued with the remainder of the Staff Report. She said it was 
staff’s recommendation to approve. 
 
Chair Chvilicek called for public comment. Linda Harrison, US 395 North, said if someone 
started a project a long time ago and dedicated the water rights for 99 years and they were no 
longer in existence could they sell those water rights. 
 
Mr. Behmaram stated the 99-year lease document and the whole process had a clause in it that 
stated if the project ceased to exist, whether it was commercial or industrial, the 99 year lease 
would be void and they would re-convey the water rights back to the rightful owner.  
 
Chair Chvilicek closed public comment and called for questions from the Commission. Hearing 
none, she called for a motion. 
 
Vice Chair Chesney moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information contained 
in the staff report and received during the public hearing, the Washoe County Planning 
Commission recommend approval of WDCA17-0002, to amend Washoe County Code Chapter 
110 within Article 422, Water and Sewer Resource Requirements as described in Attachment A. 
He further moved to authorize the Chair to sign the resolution contained in Attachment A on 
behalf of the Planning Commission and to direct staff to present a report of this Commission’s 
recommendation to the Washoe County Board of Commissioners within 60 days of today’s date. 
This recommendation for approval is based on all of the following four findings in accordance 
with Washoe County Code Section 110.818.15(e). Commissioner Donshick seconded the 
motion, which carried unanimously.  
 

1. Consistency with Master Plan.  The proposed Development Code amendment is in 
substantial compliance with the policies and action programs of the Washoe County 
Master Plan; 

2. Promotes the Purpose of the Development Code.  The proposed Development Code 
amendment will not adversely impact the public health, safety or welfare, and will 
promote the original purposes for the Development Code as expressed in Article 918, 
Adoption of Development Code; 

3. Response to Changed Conditions.  The proposed Development Code amendment 
responds to changed conditions or further studies that have occurred since the 
Development Code was adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, and the 
requested amendment allow for a more desirable utilization of land within the regulatory 
zones; and, 

4. No Adverse Affects.  The proposed Development Code amendment will not adversely 
affect the implementation of the policies and action programs of the Conservation 
Element or the Population Element of the Washoe County Master Plan. 

Item 9C was heard before Item 9B. 

 C. Development Code Amendment Case Number WDCA17-0005 (Administrative 
Permits) – For possible action, hearing, and discussion to initiate an amendment to Chapter 
110 of the Washoe County Code (Development Code) with Article 808 (Administrative 
Permits), Section 110.808.40(b) to increase the number of days from acceptance of a 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 5 of 16 

complete application for an Administrative Permit to the public hearing on the application 
from fifty (50) to sixty-five (65). 

If the proposed amendment is initiated, public hearing and further possible action to deny or 
recommend approval of the proposed amendment and, if approval is recommended, to 
authorize the Chair to sign a resolution to that effect. 

• Prepared by: Roger Pelham, MPA, Senior Planner  
Washoe County Community Services Department 
Planning and Building Division 

• Phone: 775.328.3622 
• E-Mail: rpelham@washoecounty.us  

Chair Chvilicek opened the public hearing and called for any disclosures. Hearing none, she 
called for staff’s presentation. Roger Pelham, Senior Planner, presented the Staff Report.  

Chair Chvilicek called for public comment. Hearing none, she closed public comment and 
opened questions to the Commissioners. Commissioner Chesney said the administrative 
permits were supposed to be simpler and faster and staff was now asking for more time to 
process them. He said his recommendation would be to cut them down to 30 days, because 
administrative permits were supposed to be the fastest way through the system. 

Mr. Webb stated the administrative permit process was a different process. There were two 
processes for an applicant to go through and they had to determine which one they wanted to 
follow. One half of that process was they could have an administrative process that was 
reviewed and approved by the Director. That would require notice of all the adjacent property 
owners and written consent from each of those property owners. If they could not obtain written 
consent, they would be forced to go to the Board of Adjustment application cycle and the review 
time would be severely shortened and into the normal cycle process that any other discretionary 
permit heard by the Board of Adjustment went through. If they were able to get written property 
owner consent, it would be faster simply because they would not end up with a public hearing.  

Chair Chvilicek closed the public hearing and called for a motion. 

Commissioner Donshick moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information 
contained in the staff report, the Washoe County Planning Commission initiate the amendment 
of Washoe County Code Chapter 110, within Article 808, Administrative Permits, as described 
in the staff report for WDCA17-0005. Commissioner Horan seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Donshick moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information 
contained in the staff report and information received during the public hearing, the Washoe 
County Planning Commission recommend approval of Development Code Amendment Case 
Number WDCA17-0005, to amend Washoe County Chapter 110 (Development Code) at Article 
808 Section 808.40(b) to increase the number of days from acceptance of a complete 
application for an Administrative Permit to the public hearing on the application from fifty (50) to 
sixty-five (65). She further moved to authorize the Chair to sign the resolution contained in 
Attachment A on behalf of the Washoe County Planning Commission and to direct staff to 
present a report of this Commission’s recommendation to the Washoe County Board of County 
Commissioners within 60 days of today’s date. This recommendation for approval is based on 
all of the following four findings in accordance with Washoe County Code Section 
110.818.15(e). Commissioner Horan seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

mailto:rpelham@washoecounty.us


DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 6 of 16 

1. Consistency with Master Plan.  The proposed Development Code amendment is in 
substantial compliance with the policies and action programs of the Washoe County 
Master Plan;  

2.  Promotes the Purpose of the Development Code.  The proposed Development Code 
amendment will not adversely impact the public health, safety or welfare, and will 
promote the original purposes for the Development Code as expressed in Article 918, 
Adoption of Development Code; 

3. Response to Changed Conditions.  The proposed Development Code amendment 
responds to changed conditions or further studies that have occurred since the 
Development Code was adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, and the 
requested amendment allow for a more desirable utilization of land within the regulatory 
zones; and, 

4. No Adverse Affects.  The proposed Development Code amendment will not adversely 
affect the implementation of the policies and action programs of the Conservation 
Element or the Population Element of the Washoe County Master Plan. 

 B. Development Code Amendment Case Number WDCA17-0003 (Outdoor 
Entertainment) – For possible action, hearing and discussion to initiate an amendment to 
Washoe County Code Chapter 110 (Development Code) within Article 302, Allowed Uses, 
to establish the regulatory zones wherein the Outdoor Entertainment commercial use-type is 
permitted by right or by discretionary action; and, Article 226, Section 110.22618 Equestrian 
Uses, to subject certain activities occurring under the Equestrian Facilities use type to the 
outdoor entertainment regulations; and, to create a new Article, Article 338 Outdoor 
Entertainment, for establishing the processes, regulations and standards specific to 
establishing both temporary and permanent outdoor entertainment. The proposed Article 
338, Outdoor Entertainment, expands the definition of Outdoor Entertainment to include 
both facilities and events for the assembly of 75 or more people for any purpose in any 
outdoor location; identifies a wider range of typical outdoor entertainment activities; 
establishes an administrative review and approval process for activities with an attendance 
between 75 and 999 people on any one day, and a public hearing review and approval 
process for activities with 1,000 or more people in attendance on any one day; provides for 
both temporary and permanent activities; and, proves for certain exemptions for establishing 
the use-type on Federal land. The Amendment also makes the necessary changes to Article 
304, Use Classification System, to amend the description of the Outdoor Entertainment use-
type to be consistent with the new description found in the proposed Article 338, and Article 
310, Temporary Uses, to establish the criteria for determining when a temporary outdoor 
entertainment use-type requires a permit. 

 
If the proposed amendment is initiated, public hearing and further possible action to deny or 
recommend approval of the proposed amendment and, if approval is recommended, to 
authorize the Chair to sign a resolution to that effect. 
 
• Prepared by: Eric Young, Senior Planner 

 Washoe County Community Services Department 
 Planning and Building Division 

• Phone: 775.328.3613 
• E-Mail: eyoung@washoecounty.us  

Chair Chvilicek opened the public hearing and called for disclosures from the Commission. 
Commissioner Horan disclosed that he was a member of the Incline Village General 

mailto:eyoung@washoecounty.us


DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 7 of 16 

Improvement District and they applied for such things under outdoor entertainment. 
Commissioner Chesney stated he attended the CAB meeting. Chair Chvilicek called staff 
forward. Eric Young, Senior Planner, presented the Staff Report.  

Chair Chvilicek called for public comment. Linda Harrison, US Highway 395 North, stated she 
realized that this change was to expand the definition of outdoor entertainment and to allow 
event preparers more leeway. She said she understood the events mentioned by staff, but she 
totally disagreed with the whole thing as far as redefining outdoor entertainment. She felt that if 
the County made the rules too broad there would be abuse. She lived right down the street from 
the new marijuana superstore and she was sure that was one of the places that would want to 
have outdoor concerts in their residential area. She wondered who would be putting in the 
restrictions and the requirements for security, parking, and noise stopping at 10:00 pm and 
notifying all the neighbors for her area and for other areas where those types of events might 
take place. She felt the 75 to 999 people in attendance category was too large a difference. 

Douglas Studwell, Jr., 315 Sanctuary Way, stated there were other homeowners around him 
that also agreed this Master Plan Amendment and Old Washoe zoning should not be changed 
without more specificity. There needed to be more public input because it was key to maintain 
the rural setting of Old Washoe City and Washoe Valley and other rural areas in the County. He 
did not know how they were going to handle the traffic, parking and law enforcement. He 
believed this should be delayed for more input from citizens and CABs. He said the mega 
marijuana mall was first approved as medical marijuana and then, because of the vote, it went 
to recreational marijuana. He said they were looking at future outdoor entertainment; how long 
before they wanted to make smoking lounges or smoking entertainment areas. He said right 
now people who bought marijuana were supposed to go home with it and could not smoke in a 
car or park, but he believed this change was so broad it could eventually be allowed to happen.  

William Naylor, 1005 Dunbar Drive, said staff pointed out this change would expand the typical 
uses under outdoor entertainment, which would include music, venues, theaters, sports 
activities, race tracks, amusement parks and many diverse activities. He asked the Commission 
to consider the size of these activities and what they would require. Even for a minor event, 999 
people, which probably translated to about 500 vehicles, would be present in a location. He said 
Hawkins Amphitheater only seated 400 people and had a total capacity of 900. That was a big 
facility and had a lot of parking and it did not even come up to the top of the minor entertainment 
activity in this amendment. He did not see how that would fit into their neighborhoods, especially 
on a permanent basis such a motocross race track, for example. The new regulatory zones 
would be Low Density Rural-10 acres, Medium Density Rural-5 acres; High Density Rural-2.5 
acres; and, Low Density Suburban-1 acre. He did not see how a large event could be 
comfortably done on small residential parcels like those. Warm Springs equestrian uses 
specified a parcel minimum of 35 acres and he would like to see that kind of restriction put on 
these. He thought that the public should have input, because it was not fair to put something in 
their neighborhood that they were not able to discuss openly. He hoped the Commission would 
delay this amendment to receive more public input. 

Marilyn Naylor, 1005 Dunbar Drive, stated she had been the Chair of the Spark’s Jack’s 
Carnival and that position gave her personal experience of the impact an outdoor entertainment 
event with attendance of over 500 people had on a neighborhood. After covering all the 
conditions of approval, informing the police and fire departments of times and dates of their 
event, addressing all the issues regarding food, water and sanitation, when all was said and 
done the resulting negative impact on the neighborhood was unavoidable. There was always 
increased traffic, parking along neighborhood streets, increased noise, litter, lack of public 
respect for other people’s property and the need for more security. Currently, the outdoor 
entertainment was only permitted in industrial, tourist commercial and parks and recreation. 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 8 of 16 

When one chose to live by the inconveniences associated with an outdoor event area, they 
knew what to expect, but now it was being proposed in all zoning areas. The negative impact on 
the quality of life and welfare would be substantial. The modification of a development code 
must meet the requirement that: “promoted health, safety, morals, convenience, property and 
general welfare of the public as a minimum.” This code amendment did not meet that criteria 
and she did not feel the finding could be met to approve it now. 

Karen Critor, 445 Puma Drive, said she was a board member of the Washoe Valley Alliance. 
She was concerned about the way this proposed amendment had been presented to the public 
and the lack of public input for an issue that could substantially impact people’s quality of life. 
Only one poorly attended public workshop was held because the information regarding the 
meeting was received second hand and at the last minute. The draft of the proposed 
amendment was only presented to two CABs; Warm Springs and South Truckee Meadows 
Washoe Valley. She said this was an important county-wide issue and should have been 
formally presented to all CABs. Comments from CAB members and citizens were not included 
in the staff report for consideration by the Planning Commission. The South Valleys CAB asked 
to see a final draft of the amendment before moving on it and that had not been provided. The 
staff report contained an important note, which stated the Code amendment did not apply to the 
South Valleys or Warm Springs areas since they did not allow outdoor entertainment; why then 
was this code amendment only presented to those two CABs. In South Valleys only the Old 
Washoe City Character Management Area and the Steamboat Rural Transition Mixed Use 
Character Management Area had special allowed use tables, which prohibited outdoor 
entertainment. Most of the South Valleys Area would be impacted by the County standard 
allowed use table. The important note was therefore inaccurate and misleading and may have 
prevented citizens from expressing concerns. She requested that action on this item be delayed 
until it could be presented to all CABs so Washoe County citizens could make their concerns 
known.  

J. Edward Parker, 6970 Pah Rah Drive, stated he belonged to the American Radio Relay 
League and he heard no criteria of who would determine what these events would be. He was 
also concerned with how the non-profit organizations in the community would be treated with 
the proposed amendment.  

Chair Chvilicek closed public comment and opened questions to the Commission. 
Commissioner Lawson said Mr. Young mentioned a variety of drafts were prepared and he was 
wondering if the public had an opportunity to see a final draft and was there feedback. Mr. 
Young said when staff was presented with something this complex there were always multiple 
drafts. The original couple of drafts were unrecognizable from what was being presented now, 
because they took those drafts to reviewing agencies, Reno and Sparks, and then staff took 
those comments to the drawing board to try again. The draft that was being presented tonight 
was considered a final draft about two weeks ago, which meant the Deputy District Attorney, 
managers, Mr. Webb and the directors of the department had a chance to review it and provide 
their comments, provide all their copy editing and legal editing and then he sat down and put it 
all together. He said he was not sure which draft was presented to Washoe Valley, but they saw 
the versions that included the substance that was being presented tonight. 

Mr. Webb explained the department policy stated county-wide development code amendments 
would not be presented to every CAB. This amendment was different because it included 
specific amendments to the Warm Springs Modifiers and that was why it was presented to the 
Warm Springs CAB. The presentation to the South Valleys CAB was a courtesy with the 
understanding the restriction within certain components of the South Valleys Area Plan currently 
prohibited outdoor entertainment as a permanent use type. There was not enough time in the 
process to go out to all the CABs and that was why they hosted the CAB workshop. He said 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 9 of 16 

there were changes made to the drafts after that workshop, CAB meetings and comments had 
been received; however, concerned citizens could go on line and get the staff reports and 
copies and provide input at the Planning Commission meetings if they so desired. 

Commissioner Lawson asked if this was the first opportunity staff had to hear comments and 
potentially investigate their relevancy. He said he appreciated staff had done a thorough job 
investigating and developing these regulations as best they could, but what he had seen 
missing in bureaucracy was that when the public had an opportunity for feedback there was not 
a chance for staff to say that yes maybe that needed to be done. He said he had some 
concerns about the expanded zoning and the lack of opportunity to go back to the communities 
and present the final product for additional feedback.  

Mr. Webb said that was the Commission’s role was to listen to what the public had to say and 
raise questions to staff and seek those responses. Commissioner Lawson said one of the things 
he had learned was that he was asked to accept staff’s recommendations and then rule on that 
as if it was completely confirmed. However, he thought there were times staff had not had the 
opportunity to hear from the public. He said he understood it was the Commissioners’ job to do 
that, but he asked if staff could state in a public forum that they did not incorporate feedback 
from the public into the final draft.  

Mr. Young stated the public input that was heard tonight was the same public input heard at the 
CAB meetings. He said there were concerns about the process, which staff typically did not 
include because it was almost guaranteed there was dissatisfaction with the process. He did not 
mention the public wanted this to go to all the CABs, because that was not part of the process 
or policy. He expressed to both CABs that the deadline for his staff report was too soon to 
incorporate their comments in the draft. What he committed to them was that he would put it in 
the PowerPoint presentation. He promised he would bring to the Commissioner’s attention their 
concerns about the expansive range of the thresholds and the sanctity of their public meetings, 
CAB meetings and their ability to go to the Planning Commission and Board of Adjustment to 
talk things over. Those were the two big things that came out of those meetings and that the 
proposal was going too far on the administrative approval side and the threshold was too large. 
He said staff’s recommendation of approval was based on the idea that they did their best to 
incorporate those things. If the Commission decided there was something in the draft that 
needed to be changed, that’s what he expected them to tell him tonight; that they were not 
going to let this go forward until he went back and changed it. He noted the Commission could 
decide to move this forward to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) stating their 
concerns. He noted the Commission had several options to make sure they felt they responded 
to what was heard during the public hearing tonight.  

Commissioner Donshick asked when staff added all the different parameters of where these 
events could happen, was there any thought to the size of the land or minimum acreage. Mr. 
Young stated some of the earlier drafts attempted to do that. The issue was that some events 
may be perfectly appropriate for a one-acre parcel and some would not be. The community felt 
this could technically allow some pretty impactful events on a two-acre or five-acre parcel. He 
said because events were potentially so different they needed to be reviewed individually and 
independently. Staff was asking the Commission, the community and review agencies to have 
faith in the ability of the process to not allow irrational decisions of where events would occur.  

Commissioner Horan said the challenge he had was why they were leaping to the point where 
they would allow permanent uses in all the other areas. Mr. Webb stated he had been dealing 
with the golf tournaments at Montreux every year and it was the same request. They wanted to 
be a permanent event and his response was they could not do it. They invited more than 1,000 
people to participate, but it did not fit into the current definition of outdoor entertainment because 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 10 of 16 

it was not principally a spectator event. He said the motocross event in Truckee Canyon at the 
Lucas Oil facility was a true outdoor entertainment event and was approved through a special 
use permit in the correct regulatory zone. He went on to discuss commercial stables and 
equestrian events and how they could only be established as a temporary use under Article 
310, because that Article allowed for temporary uses in any regulatory zones for a maximum of 
10 consecutive days. What staff did was to use the provision that would allow the use permit 
process to modify the Code and approve those as permanent uses, such as the Franktown 
equestrian events. Staff attempted to provide for permanent events that would bring in crowds 
for a certain number of days on a reoccurring annual basis. Mr. Young’s research found this to 
be the best effort to answer that specific question. They needed to come up with an answer to 
allow temporary use and permanent use out of two completely different codes and merge them 
into one. 

Mr. Webb stated there would be several other events that would have 74 people or below in 
attendance that would be different and handled like a business license. The process for 75 
people or more in attendance would still require public notice. He said they wanted to make sure 
the public was noticed and would have the opportunity to provide input. He noted they would 
take another process from the business license codes and the required components for review 
and put them inside the development code.  

Mr. Webb reported to the Commission the administrative permit and administrative review 
processes. He discussed the differences between attendance, requirements for review, 
standards, hours of operation, who was responsible for the review, suspension and revocation, 
and what was in the Business License Code that would work in this Code amendment. He said 
if the Commission went with this amendment, all of that would be laid out; the process that could 
be used and the mechanism to review an event that was not meeting the pre-event, during-
event and post-event conditions. He said those conditions came out of the Business License 
Code and would be reviewed on a case-by-case basis; whether it was a temporary use or a 
permanent use. 

Vice Chair Chesney said he felt the CABs were satisfied and understood the different types of 
events, but he had concerns with Warm Springs being singled out because they fought hard for 
the Area Plan. He concluded it appeared that some of those regulations were written in this new 
Code and he did not see this as objectionable. Mr. Webb stated one of the changes was to 
make sure that the Modifiers in Warm Springs remained as they were. He said an equestrian 
event in that Area would have to get a special use permit, but under this proposal they could get 
whatever was required.  

Commissioner Horan asked what the remedy would be if staff approved something for an area 
that should not have been approved. Mr. Webb explained how complaints would go through the 
Code compliance process and how citizen’s issues would go through the BCC. He informed the 
Commission of the various actions that were available, including the licensee’s ability to appeal 
to the BCC when action was taken on their business license. He noted if a decision made by the 
Director could be appealed through the Board of Adjustment, the BCC or ultimately to a court.  

Chair Chvilicek stated blending in the Business License component created specifications for 
traffic, for use, etc., and the applicant was told what they could and could not do. Mr. Young 
stated that was correct. He went on to explain the review agency checklist, staff’s 
responsibilities regarding the checklist, the different types of agencies such as federal, state, 
water, wildlife, fire and all the internal review agencies. He noted the different agencies 
requirements for the number of days to respond and comments, which would become part of 
the Conditions of Approval or denial. If there was a reason for denial, they would work with the 
applicant as much as they could to get them on track. Most of the time what they were working 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 11 of 16 

with was Conditions of Approval and those conditions were adopted by either the Director or the 
BCC and whatever those agencies required, had to happen. He said a Planner would visit the 
site as would the Health Department, Fire Department and other agencies to ensure those 
conditions were being met. He noted once those conditions were adopted, the applicant was 
stuck with them. He said the new Code would provide for staff to shut an event down, stop it 
from occurring the next year, or work with the event to bring it into conformance.  

Mr. Webb said the Conditions of Approval stated the BCC or the Director would impose 
conditions addressing facilities, pre-event, during-event and post-event, which may or may not 
require inspection. He noted the BCC or the Director may include time frames and a period 
review of the permit to determine if the existing Conditions of Approval were adequate. If they 
were not adequate, new conditions may be imposed to ensure public health, safety and welfare. 
He stated all conditions at a minimum would address police protection, food, water sanitation, 
garbage disposal, medical services, access, traffic, parking, camping and elimination, hours of 
operation, fire protection, financial ability to meet those conditions, indemnification and 
insurance.  

Chair Chvilicek asked for a more detailed description of how notification was done, because she 
was trying to figure out how the community would hear about these types of issues. She said 
she had asked to receive all CAB notifications, but had not received any. Mr. Webb stated staff 
had been working on that issue. He said notifications went out to the CAB mailing list and the 
Development Code Amendments went one step further than the County Code amendments. 
County Code amendments would be noticed in the newspaper just prior to the public hearings; 
but Development Code Amendments went a little deeper than that to try to get some sort of 
public exposure and public notification.  

Commissioner Bruce said he appreciated staff’s efforts, because this was very complex and 
difficult, but he did not agree with 100 percent of the amendment. He said Mr. Young indicated 
the original initiation order on this process had expired. Mr. Young stated that was correct. 
Commissioner Bruce asked if the Commission could take a little time to make this as 
transparent as possible, because he felt the amendment affected a lot of people and he had a 
serious question in terms of the permanency. Mr. Webb stated it was staff’s decision to have the 
Planning Commission initiate and move forward. He said this Commission would have to 
request to table the item, but he did not recommend taking it off the table completely.  

Chair Chvilicek closed the public hearing and brought discussion back to the Commission. She 
said the options before the Commission were to deny, move forward on the initiation and bring it 
back for further review, or approve both the initiation and the amendment. DDA Edwards stated 
the Commission could proceed in that manner or simply initiate and take no action and then it 
would be brought back. Mr. Webb stated if the Commission determined to do that, to provide 
staff with firm guidance about what the Commission would like to see changed.  

Commissioner Horan stated he thought he could accept the permanency portion because if an 
event was not working, there would be a review process and ways to appeal. He felt staff’s 
recommendations made a lot of sense and he supported the application as presented. 

Commissioner Lawson said he thought the Commission should initiate action and provide 
direction to staff, but he was not comfortable to approve the amendment as it was presented 
because he had too many concerns. His chief concern was the lack of opportunity for the 
community to provide meaningful feedback. He said he thought they could add to the Conditions 
of Approval, but he thought that was usurping their responsibility to the community to hear what 
they had to say. He said another concern was the broad inclusion of rural communities and this 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 12 of 16 

had gone too far, too fast. His direction would be to initiate, but provide clear direction to hold a 
public workshop that would be better advertised. 

Mr. Young said there was a little bit of a disconnect between establishing it as a permanent use 
and establishing it as temporary use. Currently, it was only allowed as a permanent use in three 
regulatory zones: industrial, tourist commercial and parks and recreation. He explained it was 
allowed as a temporary use in any regulatory zone given the appropriate review process. Chair 
Chvilicek discussed the complex tables and how the legend was missing from the table, which 
did not help them or the public. Mr. Young stated that was his fault, because it should have 
been included.  
 
Commissioner Bruce asked if the clock would start ticking again if the amendment was initiated. 
Mr. Young stated the 125-day clock would start.  
 
Chair Chvilicek called for a motion. 

Commissioner Lawson moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information 
contained in the staff report and information received during the public hearing, the Washoe 
County Planning Commission initiate the amendment of Washoe County Code Chapter 110 
within Article 226, Warm Springs, Article 302, Allowed Uses; Article 304, Use Classification 
System; Article 310, Temporary Uses; and, Article 338, Outdoor Entertainment, as described in 
the staff report and discussed at the public hearing. Commissioner Horan seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Horan moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information 
contained in the staff report and information received during the public hearing, the Washoe 
County Planning Commission recommend approval of WDCA17-0003, to amend Washoe 
County Chapter 110 (Development Code) within Article 226, Warm Springs, Article 302, Allowed 
Uses; Article 304, Use Classification System; Article 310, Temporary Uses; and, Article 338, 
Outdoor Entertainment. He further moved to authorize the Chair to sign the resolution contained 
in Attachment A on behalf of the Washoe County Planning Commission and to direct staff to 
present a report of this Commission’s recommendation to the Washoe County Board of County 
Commissioners within 60 days of today’s date. This recommendation for approval is based on 
all of the following four findings in accordance with Washoe County Code Section 
110.818.15(e). The motion died for a lack of a second.  
 
DDA Edwards explained if the Commission voted to deny the amendment, it would not be 
brought back for further review.  
 
Chair Chvilicek called for feedback from the Commission for direction to staff. DDA Edwards 
said he thought staff had been tracking the various points and the Commission was only 
agendized to move to initiate or not, and to either recommend approval or denial. He said the 
Commissioners acted to initiate and staff had been tracking the comments and input from the 
Commission and there would be a video and minutes for their use. He recommended the 
Commission not take another action, because there was a risk of the way the agenda was 
written. 
 
 D. Development Code Amendment Case Number WDCA17-0006 (Minor Deviations) – 

For possible action, hearing, and discussion pursuant to NRS 278.319 to initiate an 
amendment to Washoe County Code Chapter 110 (Development Code) within Article 804, 
Variances, to add Section 110.804.35 (Minor Deviations) to allow the Director of the 
Planning and Building Division to grant minor deviations of standards within Chapter 110 of 
the Washoe County Code for deviations less than 10 percent of the applicable Development 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 13 of 16 

Code Standard; to establish an application process for minor deviations; and, for other 
maters necessarily connected therewith ad pertaining thereto. 

If the proposed amendment is initiated, public hearing and further possible action to deny or 
recommend approval of the proposed amendment and, if approval is recommended, to 
authorize the Chair to sign a resolution to that effect. 

• Prepared by: Trevor Lloyd, Planning Manager  
Washoe County Community Services Department 
Planning and Building Division 

• Phone: 775.328.3620 
• E-Mail: tlloyd@washoecounty.us  

Mr. Webb read the item into the record. Chair Chvilicek opened the public hearing and called for 
any disclosures. Hearing none, she called for staff to make their presentation. Trevor Lloyd, 
Planning Manager, presented the Staff Report.  

Chair Chvilicek opened public comment. Hearing none, she closed public comment and brought 
the discussion back to the Commission. Commissioner Horan asked why the County could be 
allowed to deviate from the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). Mr. Lloyd stated this would match 
the NRS. Commissioner Horan stated he understood, but why was it not being matched 
currently. Mr. Webb said it was matched; however, staff had not had time to correct all the 
language in the Code and that’s what this amendment would do. 

Commissioner Bruce asked if staff was anticipating multiple minor deviations in a Plan. Mr. 
Lloyd stated staff would expect multiple deviations throughout the year. He said all the Planners 
felt there was a need for this type of process. Commissioner Bruce said it stated that an 
applicant must file a Director’s modification of standards, and he asked if staff expected multiple 
filings from the same applicant for the same project. Mr. Lloyd said an applicant could not 
request multiple deviations.  

DDA Edwards stated the County was not currently out of line with the NRS. The NRS allowed a 
county to create this type of ordinance, but it was not a requirement that a county have one of 
these ordinances. Chair Chvilicek asked if it would be fair to say that this was replicating state 
law. DDA Edwards stated yes, this was taking advantage of permission from the Legislature to 
create one of these ordinances. 

Chair Chvilicek called for a motion. 

Vice Chair Chesney moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information contained 
in the staff report and received during the public hearing, the Washoe County Planning 
Commission initiate the amendment to Washoe County Code Chapter 110 within Article 804, 
Variances, as described in the staff report for WDCA17-0006. Commissioner Donshick 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 
Vice Chair Chesney moved that after giving reasoned consideration to the information contained 
in the staff report and received during the public hearing, the Washoe County Planning 
Commission recommend approval of WDCA17-0006, to amend Washoe County Code Chapter 
110 within Article 804, Variances, as described in the staff report for this matter. He further 
moved to authorize the Chair to sign the resolution contained in Attachment A on behalf of the 
Planning Commission and to direct staff to present a report of this Commission’s 
recommendation to the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners within 60 days of 
today’s date. This recommendation for approval is based on all of the following four findings in 

mailto:tlloyd@washoecounty.us


DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 14 of 16 

accordance with Washoe County Code Section 110.818.15(e). Commissioner Donshick 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

1. Consistency with Master Plan.  The proposed Development Code amendment is in 
substantial compliance with the policies and action programs of the Washoe County 
Master Plan;  

2. Promotes the Purpose of the Development Code.  The proposed Development Code 
amendment will not adversely impact the public health, safety or welfare, and will 
promote the original purposes for the Development Code as expressed in Article 918, 
Adoption of Development Code; 

3. Response to Changed Conditions.  The proposed Development Code amendment 
responds to changed conditions or further studies that have occurred since the 
Development Code was adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, and the 
requested amendment allow for a more desirable utilization of land within the regulatory 
zones; and, 

4. No Adverse Affects.  The proposed Development Code amendment will not adversely 
affect the implementation of the policies and action programs of the Conservation 
Element or the Population Element of the Washoe County Master Plan. 

10 Planning Items 
A. For possible action and discussion to provide direction to staff on the proposed revised 
Rules, Policies and Procedures (RPPs) for the Planning Commission regarding the conduct 
of meetings, hearings, and appeals to the Board of County Commissioners, and governance 
matters such as quorum, voting, record keeping, and the duties, responsibilities and ethical 
rules for Planning Commission members. Staff will incorporate any provided direction into 
the proposed revised RPPs and bring the RPPs back to the Planning Commission at their 
November 7, 2017 meeting for review and possible adoption. Direction can include 
amendments resulting in a full overhaul of the RPPs in order to streamline them and shorten 
them to coincide with the structure of the RPP amendments by the Board of Adjustment in 
2016.  

• Prepared by: Julee Olander, Planner  
Washoe County Community Services Department 
Planning and Building Division 

• Phone: 775.328.3627 
• E-Mail: jolander@washoecounty.us  

 
Mr. Webb read the item into the record. Julee Olander, Planner, presented the Staff Report. She 
explained the correct version of Exhibit B did not make it into the packets for the Commission 
and she would bring it back at the next meeting. 
 
Chair Chvilicek called for public comment. Hearing none, she closed public comment and 
opened discussion to the Commission. Commissioner Donshick asked for clarification of Exhibit 
B. Ms. Olander suggested the Commission ignore Exhibit B. Commissioner Donshick said the 
motion’s language included Exhibit B and C. DDA Edwards said Exhibit B would be removed 
from the motion. Chair Chvilicek reminded the Commission they would see this again in 
November. Mr. Webb stated the comments from Commissioner Donshick were spot on and if 
any of the other Commissioners noticed things that were not consistent, to let staff know.  

 
Chair Chvilicek called for a motion. 

 

mailto:jolander@washoecounty.us


DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 15 of 16 

Commissioner Lawson moved to provide the following direction to staff concerning the Planning 
Commission’s revised Rules, Policies and Procedures as shown in Attachment C. He further 
moved to direct staff to incorporate the direction into the revised RPPs and to bring the RPPs 
back to this Commission at the November 7, 2017 meeting for review and possible adoption. He 
further moved to include the Commission comments from this meeting. Commissioner Donshick 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 
11. Chair and Commission Items 

*A. Future agenda items  

There were no items requested 

*B. Requests for information from staff  

Vice Chair Chesney said the Design Review Committee turned into strictly a landscape review 
committee and he would like staff to come back with recommendations as to how the 
Commission could make the Design Review Committee a real design review committee. Mr. 
Lloyd said as long-term secretary to the Design Review Committee he had seen an evolution, 
and he explained it was no fault of the committee. Over the last few years they had very few 
projects. DDA Edwards stated they could not continue to discuss this item, only make a request 
to staff. Mr. Lloyd said they would bring it back at a future date. 

12. Director’s and Legal Counsel’s Items  
  *A. Report on previous Planning Commission items  

Mr. Webb stated that WDCA17-0004, Care of the Infirmed, was scheduled to be heard by the 
Board of County Commissioners (BCC) on November 14, 2017 for a first reading. He thought 
the second reading would be on December 12, 2017.  

Mr. Lloyd reminded the Commissioners that the BCC heard the Ascenté project on appeal and 
upheld the decision by the Planning Commission. He said starting in November they would be 
rolling out the new staff report format. He hoped the Commissioners had a chance to review it 
and comment.  

 *B Legal information and updates  

DDA Edwards stated there was a brief reference to a lawsuit that was pending against the 
County regarding dedication of water rights, which was related to the amendment the 
Commission heard tonight and recommended approval to eliminate the dedication requirement. 
He explained that if the amendment was passed the lawsuit would probably go away and would 
curb future risks to the County for takings claims.  
 
13. *General Public Comment 
There was no response to the call for public comment. 

  
14. Adjournment 
10:00pm  Vice Chair Chesney moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Donshick 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.  

 
 
 
 



DRAFT

 
October 3, 2017 Washoe County Planning Commission Meeting Minutes                                           Page 16 of 16 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
   
 Katy Stark, Recording Secretary 

 

 

 

Approved by Commission in session on November 7, 2017. 

 

 

   
Carl R. Webb, Jr., AICP 

 Secretary to the Planning Commission 


	8. Planning Items
	*A. Presentation and possible discussion on the 2017/2018 Truckee Meadows Regional Plan update. Presentation will include an overview of the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan, the Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency, and the update process.
	Item 8A was continued to the November 7, 2017 Planning Commission meeting.
	9. Public Hearings
	There were no items requested
	Vice Chair Chesney said the Design Review Committee turned into strictly a landscape review committee and he would like staff to come back with recommendations as to how the Commission could make the Design Review Committee a real design review commit...
	12. Director’s and Legal Counsel’s Items
	*A. Report on previous Planning Commission items
	Mr. Webb stated that WDCA17-0004, Care of the Infirmed, was scheduled to be heard by the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) on November 14, 2017 for a first reading. He thought the second reading would be on December 12, 2017.
	Mr. Lloyd reminded the Commissioners that the BCC heard the Ascenté project on appeal and upheld the decision by the Planning Commission. He said starting in November they would be rolling out the new staff report format. He hoped the Commissioners ha...
	*B Legal information and updates
	DDA Edwards stated there was a brief reference to a lawsuit that was pending against the County regarding dedication of water rights, which was related to the amendment the Commission heard tonight and recommended approval to eliminate the dedication ...
	13. *General Public Comment
	There was no response to the call for public comment.
	14. Adjournment
	10:00pm  Vice Chair Chesney moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Donshick seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.



